Questions and Answers Regarding

DARPA BAA 06-25
Micro Isotope Power Sources (MIPS)
1. Is the program structure for the MIPS program typical?
No. The program structure is designed to (1) minimize the total time required to achieve program objectives, and (2) permit DARPA to periodically review all contracts at the same time.
2. Does DARPA envision that the MIPS program will be a three year program?
No. The PIP states:

The Micro Isotope Power Sources (MIPS) program is envisioned as a multi-phase program. The overall length of each proposed effort will be determined by the offeror. (p. I-2)
Thus, the program has no specified length. It is up to each offeror to determine how long it will take to meet Benchmark 3 objectives, and to propose a project of that length. The PIP also says

DARPA is seeking to minimize the time required to achieve the program objectives. The total proposed time of the effort (base plus options) will be a significant factor considered in the evaluation of proposals. (pp. I-2, I-3, emphasis in original)

Thus, proposers should seek to compress program schedules so as to minimize the amount of time required to achieve Benchmark 3.

3. Am I correct in assuming that the program will be broken into phases, each 12 months in duration?
Not exactly. The PIP states:

Proposals should be formulated with a twelve month base phase, and a number of optional phases. All optional phases should be 12 months in duration, except for the last phase which may be less than 12 months in duration. (p. I-2)

Thus, each project under the MIPS program will be broken into a series of phases. All but the last phase will be 12 months in duration. The last phase may be 12 months in duration, or any duration less than 12 months. It is up to the proposer to outline their proposed project schedule.

4. Am I correct in assuming that DARPA wishes teams to achieve Benchmark 1 at the end of the first year, Benchmark 2 at the end of the second year, and Benchmark 3 at the end of the third year?
No. DARPA is providing no guidance as to when the benchmarks should be achieved, except that Benchmark 3 should be accomplished at the end of the last optional phase (i.e. at the end of the project).  The PIP states:

During the program, teams will work to fabricate prototypes able to meet the benchmark levels of performance outlined in Table 1. (p. I-3)

As part of their proposals, offerors will provide a plan that outlines the level of performance, in terms of power output, volume, radiological induced degradation, and leakage rate, that their devices will achieve in the middle and at the end of each phase (Volume I, Section II.B). Though these levels of performance should show successive achievement of the benchmarks outlined in Table 1, achievement of benchmarks need not line up precisely with the end of phases. For example, a plan could indicate performance less than Benchmark I at the end of Phase I, but in excess of Benchmark I at the end of Phase II. (p. I-4, emphasis in original)

Research plans should be structured such that Benchmark III is achieved at the end of the last optional phase. (p. I-4)

To understand benchmarks better, consider benchmarks as signs along a road. DARPA is specifying that performers should advance (drive) from wherever they are now, past Benchmarks 1 and 2, and arrive at Benchmark 3 at the end of their project. DARPA is not specifying when these benchmarks must be passed, except that they should be passed as soon as practical.
When proposing a program schedule, teams should consider that the Benchmark 1 is very similar to the level of performance targeted during Phase I of the previous Radio Isotope Micropower Systems (RIMS) program. It is reasonable to assume that a number of teams have been working to achieve Benchmark 1 levels of performance for at least 18 months, and that one or more teams may have achieved Benchmark 1 already. DARPA believes that a MIPS technology that can be realized sooner is technically superior to an equivalent MIPS technology that takes longer to develop. Thus, teams that target Benchmark 1 at the end of the first phase (12 months) may find themselves at a disadvantage. 
5. What are the Go-/No-Go metrics that teams will be measured against at the end of each phase?
Each team will be measured against the targets the team has set forth in their proposal. The PIP states:

As part of their proposals, offerors will provide a plan that outlines the level of performance, in terms of power output, volume, radiological induced degradation, and leakage rate, that their devices will achieve in the middle and at the end of each phase (Volume I, Section II.B). (p. I-4, emphasis in original)

At the end of each phase, DARPA intends to measure performers against their planned performance, and not against the benchmarks directly. (p. I-4, emphasis in original)

6. Should the target levels of performance outlined in Volume I, Section II. of the proposal be the same as outlined in Volume I, Section II.D.
Yes. However, only end-of-phase metrics need be included in Volume I, Section II.D.
7. Will the Go-/No-Go metrics be the same for all the teams?
No. The PIP states:

At the end of each phase, DARPA intends to measure performers against their planned performance… (p. I-4, emphasis in original)

Thus, unless two teams propose the same Go-/No-Go metrics, each team’s Go-/No-Go metrics will be different.

8. In proposal Volume I, Section II.B., DARPA  is requesting target levels of performance be specified every six months. Phases will end (except for the last phase) every year. What are the interim targets for?
The results of interim tests are informational purposes only, and are not intended to be used for Go-/No-Go decisions. The PIP states:

During each phase, DARPA anticipates that teams will conduct regular testing to determine system performance. Optimally, such tests will occur twice per phase, and be complete on or before the first days of the sixth and eleventh months of each phase. Tests that occur in the middle of a phase will be used to assess interim performance. Tests that occur at the end of the phase will be used in making decisions regarding exercise of additional contract options (i.e. no/no-go decisions). (p. I-4)

DARPA has found that setting interim targets and measuring against these targets is useful in helping teams assess their interim progress and motivate successful completion of the phase.
9. Does “Radiological induced degradation” include the effects of the isotope half-life?
No. The PIP states:

Radiological induced degradation is the projected percentage reduction on power that will occur each year due to self-induced radiological damage. (p. I-3)

Normal degradation of an isotope source due to radioactive decay is not considered self-induced radiological damage.
10. Has DARPA provided any guidance as to the anticipated / required lifetime for the MIPS power sources, or the half-life of the isotopes to be used?
No. It is likely that there is an array of potential military applications, some of which require MIPS devices to last for years or decades, and some which may require shorter life-spans. Teams should make reasonable assumptions about potential military uses that these systems may have, and make reasonable estimates of system requirements. Teams should then compare the performance they anticipate against these requirements. 

Teams should also not assume that the isotopes they have at their disposal are the optimal isotopes for use in MIPS systems. Though teams must demonstrate actual working devices that meet Benchmark 3 levels of performance, they should anticipate and potentially discuss the performance that their systems could achieve utilizing different isotope sources. 

With this said, it is questionable whether a system that achieved Benchmark 3 levels of performance, but only lasted for several days or weeks would be considered substantially superior to conventional batteries. 
11. Regarding the requirement that teams utilize the MEMS Exchange (p. I-8), does this mean I should limit my technical approaches to those that can be accomplished using the capabilities offered by the MEMS Exchange?
Absolutely not. Performers should first establish their technical approach, and then work with the MEMS Exchange to determine whether any of the capabilities offered by the MEMS Exchange are relevant to their technical approach. If the MEMS Exchange has relevant capabilities, then performers are required to use the MEMS Exchange, unless they obtain a waiver from DARPA.

12. If the MEMS Exchange does not offer any services that I need, am I still required to use them.
No. Simply note in Volume I, Section I.C. of your proposal that the MEMS Exchange does not offer any services that you require. 
13. How do I obtain a waiver to use MEMS fabrication facilities other than the MEMS Exchange?
If you require fabrication services that the MEMS Exchange offers, then you are required to use the MEMS Exchange unless you obtain a waiver. Waivers will be granted during the source selection process (during the evaluation of proposals). Offers should provide justification for their waiver in Volume I, Section I.C. of their proposal. In general, cost should not be used as a justification, unless the cost differential is substantial. Performer should recognize that while utilizing the MEMS Exchange may increase the cost of their project, it may not result in an increased overall cost to DARPA, since DARPA also provides direct funding to the MEMS Exchange. Funding provided to the MEMS Exchange through a MIPS effort may offset other DARPA MEMS Exchange funding. 
14. Since DARPA requires that I use the MEMS Exchange, am I correct in assuming that DARPA will be understanding if I experience a problem with the MEMS Exchange, and if these problems cause me to miss technical milestones?
No. Completion of technical milestones is the sole responsibility of the offeror. If the MEMS Exchange is performing critical services, and if teams feel this introduces additional risk into their project, then they are encouraged to implement whatever risk mitigation strategies they feel are necessary. Such risk mitigation strategies may include use of alternate fabrication facilities.
15. How do I get in contact with the MEMS Exchange?
Please see http://www.mems-exchange.org/.  
16. How much money will be available for the MIPS program? What is a reasonable project size?
DARPA has made no decisions as to the funding level for the MIPS program. Teams should plan their projects so as to accomplish program objectives as expeditiously as practical, and request funds as needed to execute their program as planned.
17. Are DARPA Program Managers able to communicate with potential offerors during the BAA process and answer questions?
Yes. Teams are encouraged to contact Dr. Evans at John.Evans@DARPA.mil with any questions they may have. 
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